ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 24, 2004
8:03 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghil |
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 31

Proposi ng anendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to the Al aska permanent fund and to paynents to certain
state residents from the Al aska permanent fund; and providing
for an effective date for the anmendnents.

- MOVED CSHJR 31(STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO 132

"An Act relating to the duties of the attorney general;
requiring the attorney general to participate in all actions
affecting the nmanagenent and jurisdiction of the natural
resources of the state; amending Rule 24(c), Al aska Rules of
Civil Procedure; and anending Rule 514, Alaska Rules of
Appel | ate Procedure.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 496

"An Act creating the Youth Vote Anbassador Program and rel ating
to that program authorizing the nmenbers of the program to be
appoi nt ed to serve on el ection boar ds; relating to
qualifications for appointnment to el ection boards; and providing
for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 24, 2004



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HIR 31

SHORT TI TLE: CONST AM PERMANENT FUND

SPONSOR( S) :

01/ 02/ 04
01/ 12/ 04
01/ 12/ 04
01/ 23/ 04
01/ 23/ 04
01/ 23/ 04
02/ 04/ 04
02/ 04/ 04
02/ 04/ 04
02/ 18/ 04
02/ 18/ 04
02/ 18/ 04
02/ 19/ 04
02/ 19/ 04
02/ 19/ 04
03/ 04/ 04
03/ 04/ 04
03/ 04/ 04
03/ 09/ 04
03/ 09/ 04
03/ 09/ 04
03/ 19/ 04
03/ 19/ 04
03/ 19/ 04
03/ 24/ 04

BILL: HB 132

IIITITITITITIITITIIIIITIIIIL

REPRESENTATI VE(S) HOLM

PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 2/ 04

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
WM STA, JUD, FIN

WM AT 8: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( W&M)

WM AT 8: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( W&M)

VWM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
Moved CSHIR 31(WM Qut of Committee
M NUTE( W&M)

WM RPT CS(W&M NT 6NR

NR: WEYHRAUCH, SAMUELS, W LSON, OGG
MOSES, HAWKER

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( STA)

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( STA)

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( STA)

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

SHORT TI TLE: AG I NTERVENE | N NATURAL RESOURCES ACTI ONS

SPONSOR( S) :

02/ 26/ 03
02/ 26/ 03
03/13/03
03/13/03
03/ 24/ 04

BILL: HB 496

32z3

REPRESENTATI VE(S) WEYHRAUCH

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
STA, RES, JUD

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
Schedul ed But Not Heard

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

SHORT TI TLE: YOUTH VOTE AMBASSADOR PROG ELECTI ON BDS

SPONSOR( S) :

HOUSE STA COW TTEE

REPRESENTATI VE(S) DAHLSTROM

-2- March 24, 2004



02/ 16/ 04 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 04 (H) STA
03/ 24/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

SUSAN TAYLOR, Director

Adm ni strative Services Division

Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Addressed the fiscal note wth the
conponent | abel ed, "Conm ssioner's O fice" [affecting the
Depart ment of Revenue], during the hearing on HIR 31.

LANCE NELSON, Seni or Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Nat ural Resources Section

Cvil Division (Anchorage)

Departnent of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the departnent and
answered questions during the hearing on HB 132.

DAVID W MARQUEZ, Chief Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Legi slation & Regul ati ons Section

Ofice of the Attorney Ceneral

Departnent of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions on behalf
of the departnent during the hearing on HB 132.

KELLY HUBER, St aff

to Representative Nancy Dahl strom

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 496 on Dbehalf of
Represent ati ve Dahl strom sponsor.

LEONARD JONES

El ections Special Assistant

Di vision of Elections

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions on behalf of the
di vision, during the hearing on HB 496.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 24, 2004



TAPE 04-45, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:03 a.m Representati ves Hol m
Seaton, Coghill, Lynn, and Weyhrauch were present at the call to
order. Representatives Berkowitz and Guenberg arrived as the
nmeeting was in progress.

HIR 31- CONST AM PERVANENT FUND

Nunmber 0048

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO 31, Proposing anendnents to the
Constitution of the State of Alaska relating to the Al aska
permanent fund and to paynents to certain state residents from
the Al aska permanent fund; and providing for an effective date
for the anmendnents.

Nunmber 0067

SUSAN  TAYLOR, Director, Adm nistrative Services Division,
Department of Revenue, directed the commttee's attention to the
fiscal note with the conponent | abeled, "Conm ssioner's Ofice"
[affecting the Departnent of Revenue]. She rem nded the
commttee that testinony had been given at the previous hearing
on HIR 31 [on March 19, 2004], stating that the Pernmanent Fund
Dividend Division would be phased out, but there would be
continuing work that would be picked up by the Ofice of the
Comm ssioner [in the Departnent of Revenue]. She |isted that
continuing work as: formal appeals and court appeals of denied
decisions; collections of dividends fraudulently received or
paid in error; continuing work regarding the 18-year-old filers;
and fraud investigation. She stated that because the stakes
woul d be so high, it would be expected that fraud woul d possibly
i ncrease; therefore, a fraud investigator would [work] for three

years. Because of the increase in the formal hearings, she
said, another hearing examner would be hired, as well as two
| egal office assistants. The other position that would be

maintained for quite awhile would be an Admnistrative derk
[11, which would deal with the 18-year-old filers and work with
anyone on repaynent plans.

Number 0250

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 24, 2004



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that public testinony was closed. He
offered his understanding that [CSHIR 31(WM] was before the
comittee.

Nunmber 0303

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to adopt Anendnent 1, which read as
follows [original punctuation provided]:

Pg. 2, line 12, after the word "dividend." I nsert:
Paynents under this subsection shall be distributed by
April 1, 2005.

This anendnent is a practical fix to the problem of
noving billions of dollars out of the market and ot her
investnments of the fund w thout negative effects to
the fund value or the markets. The Fund nanagers have
said that this date wll be sufficient.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH obj ect ed for discussion purposes.
Number 0375

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN suggested that nmking the payout over two
years, instead of one, mght be an advantage, because people
woul dn't have such a |l arge tax [anount].

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM responded that the tax inplications are
considerably better for a lunp sum than they actually are in
smal | anounts. He illustrated that a tax of 23 percent on
$20, 000 woul d | eave $15, 400. He said, "That anmount invested
identically to the permanent fund is projected to return 8
percent, and if it did, it would create $1,232 per year of
incone on that amount, and you still would have the $15, 400 of
capital left in your own account. And so, | think it's a noot
point as to whether or not you break it apart in little pieces
o Furthernore, he observed that $1,100 per year at a
conservative 2-percent inflation would result in a net |oss of
$3,233, if taxes don't go up and a mmjority of 15-percent tax

brackets stay the sane. He added, "It will also be a net |oss
of $2,354." He concluded, "So, your net noney, after 18 years,
is still only worth $14,412, which is an interesting anonmaly."
Number 0500

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 24, 2004



CHAI R VEYHRAUCH renoved his objection. He asked if there was
further objection to Amendnent 1. There being none, Anendnent 1
was adopt ed.

Nunmber 0518

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to adopt Anendnent 2, which read as
fol | ows:

Page 2, line 12, follow ng "dividend":

Insert ", unless a witten rejection of the paynent is
provided to the State"

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH obj ected for di scussion purposes.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM expl ai ned that Anmendnment 2 responds to sone
of the discussion that took place during the [March 19, 2004
neeting on HIJR 31], regarding those folks who mght lose their
hol d harm ess provisions. He said, "W put this forth to offer
to those that didn't want to lose their ability to get welfare
paynents, the ability to (indisc. - coughing) of the $20,000, if
they so desire. So, it's just choice.™

Number 0538

CHAIR VEYHRAUCH noted that since Amendnent 1 was adopted, a
techni cal anmendnent to Amendnent 2 was necessary to replace
“di vidend" with "2005".

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said he would accept that. [ The technica
amendnent to Anendnment 2 was treated as adopted.]

Number 0571

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he knows that "in sonme provision the
State of Alaska has the ability to apply for dividends, even if

people don't want them" He asked, "The effect of this
provision, does it allow a participant to not receive it, and
also ... prevent the State of Al aska fromreceiving that for

child support enforcenent?”

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM responded that he would doubt that, because
"it would be no different than if soneone was incarcerated and
chose not to do it."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that he wants to ensure that
[ Avendment 2, as anended] would not be putting in a new

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 24, 2004



statutory provision that would allow soneone to reject the
paynent "and that has sonme inpact on that."

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM stated for the record that he agrees wth
Represent ati ve Seat on

Nunmber 0657

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH renoved his objection. He asked if there was
further objection to Amendnent 2 [as anended]. There being
none, Anendnent 2 [as anended] was adopt ed.

Nunmber 0688

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to report HIR 31, as anended, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes.

Number 0720
CHAI R WEYHRAUCH obj ect ed for discussion purposes.
Number 0728

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated that he appreciates the resol ution
as a neans to look at the state fiscal plan; however, he said it
seens that it would be transferring from future generations to
the current participants what was envisioned to be an ongoing
di stribution of permanent funds through dividends. He said he
woul d not support the resol ution.

Number 0760

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ stated that he likes the title, but
does not |like the concept of hashing out the dividend. He said
it seens like a surrender strategy; surrendering the
responsibility to keep the permanent fund permanent as well as
the idea that a solution to the fiscal gap can be achieved
Wi t hout going to excessive neans.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ, regarding the reason that he |ikes the
title, observed that [legislators] spend a lot of tinme talking
about the fiscal gap and outflow of the permanent fund,
regardi ng whether there will be percent of market value (POW)

or a dedicated anobunt to dividends, for exanple. Wth the
existing title, he said, "W can start talking a little bit nore
about what's coming in." He nmentioned the "Creno plan" [after

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 24, 2004



Roger Creno]. He announced that he will not object to noving
HIR 31 out of commttee, because he thinks it's inportant to
"carry the conversation further into the building than we are

right now," but he will be voting "do not pass.” He stated his
intention to propose anendnents based upon the Crenp plan.
Representative Berkow tz concluded, "I think we can do a better
job about filling Alaska's <coffers into the future by

structurally changing the fiscal system than [by] just sinply
cashi ng out today."

Number 0853

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN stated that he thinks this resolution is a
good exanmple of thinking outside the box. He said that
obviously a payout of this type would benefit anyone over 60

because "one would have to ganble on living until you're 80

years old" to receive that amount if it were paid over the next
20 years. He said others have expressed concern to himthat if
peopl e are paid $20,000 all at once they mght blow the noney.
He said he thinks it isn't anybody's business what other people
do with their own noney. He indicated that such a payout woul d
be an econom c boon to Al aska. He said he thinks [HIR 31] is
worthy of debate, and he stated his intent to vote it out of
commttee, with "no recomrendation,” because he wants to see the
resol ution debated further along with other alternatives.

Nunmber 0968

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH characterized the permanent fund as a
conceptualization of a shining city on a hill. He spoke of vast
oil wealth put into a permanent fund and of giving an annual
payout to people so they would ensure that politicians would
stay honest with the state's noney. He recollected that in
1982, when the "permanent fund payout” was being debated, the
state hired high-priced experts from around the world to | ook at
the influx of wvast anounts of <capital into countries |1|ike
Ni geria, where noney cane in and was sinply squandered. He
related that those experts said [the state] would be better off
maki ng statues out of gold that could be nelted down and used
| ater, rather than "building other kinds of nonunents that
sinply do the public no good." He said that as oil prices
declined, the tenor of debate has becone quite uncivil and has
frozen the ability of the public and legislators to look at a
| ong-term fiscal solution.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said it will be with sone resignation that he
wi |l support nmoving [HIR 31] out of conmittee, because it is an

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 24, 2004



acknow edgenent that "nmaybe, ... instead of a permanent fund to
guide our state into the future, we've got a $28-billion
mllstone around our collective necks; that we've frozen our
ability to conme up with long-term reasoned solutions to problens
in the state.” He observed that the government is a different
entity than the private sector and the individual, and
governnent can't and should not operate the sane as the private
sector. He said that rather seeing [HIR 31] as an abrogation of
[the legislature's] responsibility, he sees a "payout of a large
sum now. " He said he thinks Representative Holm has nade the
case that this is a way to capitalize individual initiative and
dreans and perhaps put wheels under people who would have |eft
the state anyway, and "to finance that aspect of this payout."”
He said he certainly sees [HIR 31] wuld be keeping a
significant anount of noney available for the state governnent
to operate itself in the future. He said, "And to that respect,
we do honor our future generations of Alaska that rely on state
governnment, and the present generations that may be able to
build certain needs of future generations through private sector
initiative." He said he wants to follow Representative
Berkowi tz's suggestion regarding the Crenp plan and structura
changes to deal wth finances, and he agrees wth both
Representatives Lynn and Berkowitz that this debate should nove
forward. He stated his intention to vote "do pass.”

Nunber 1174
REPRESENTATI VE HOLM thanked his fellow commttee menbers for

their deliberation on the issue. He agreed with Representative
Berkowitz that there are structural problens regarding wanting

to have a perfect governnent, in the sense that the governnent
and the people respond appropriately regardi ng what is demanded,
received, and paid for. He clarified that there is a disconnect

in Al aska between "those of us who ask for services from the
governnent and those of wus who pay for services for the
gover nnment . " He said he thinks [HIR 31] would settle part of
that problem by putting into perspective that there is going to
be only so nmuch noney available from the permanent fund that is
| eft for governnent to utilize. The resolution would not take
away the need for the legislature to be careful regarding how
the state's assets are spent.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM stated his belief that it's inportant that
the people of Alaska understand that [$28 billion] of the
state's assets are in the New York Stock Exchange, and because
they're there, they do absolutely nothing to create the wealth
in Al aska. He noted that $700 million dollars com ng back out

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 24, 2004



of [$28 billion] is a small amobunt. Taking $10 billion to give
to the people of Alaska, he said, is putting that capital into
the people of Alaska s pockets. He asked the conmittee to
consider what effect it would have on a person to have his/her
nortgage cut from 30 years to 15 years, for exanple. He offered
nore exanples of how [the $20,00 payout] could benefit Al askans.
He said, "This is not a perfect scenario, it is just an idea.

But we could retain over half of it and still have enough
earnings to provide for the governnental needs of Al aska,
w thout fighting the process that we're doing today." He
remarked that wunder any other kind of scenario, the problem
would still have to be solved. He opined that [HIR 31] is a
structural fix that wll solve the dilemma of Al aska [not]
havi ng enough noney. He asked the conmittee to renenber, "Wen
you have [$16 billion] left ..., 8 percent of that anmount of
noney is enough noney to pay for all of the needs of the State
of Al aska's governnent."” He indicated that there would still be

noney to put back into the CBR

Nunber 1393

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH r enoved hi s objection.

Nunber 1397

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL obj ect ed.

Nunber 1400

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves Berkow tz, Holm
Lynn, and Wyhrauch voted in favor of reporting HIR 31, as
anended, wth individual recomendations and the attached fisca
notes, out of conmttee. Representatives G uenberg, Seaton, and
Coghill voted against it. Therefore, CSHIR 31(STA) was reported
out of the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee by a vote of
4- 3.

HB 132- AG | NTERVENE I N NATURAL RESOURCES ACTI ONS

Nunber 1463

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 132, "An Act relating to the duties of the
attorney general; requiring the attorney general to participate
in all actions affecting the managenent and jurisdiction of the
natural resources of the state; anending Rule 24(c), Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 24, 2004



Rul es of Cvil Procedure; and anending Rule 514, Al aska Rul es of
Appel | ate Procedure.”

Nunber 1473
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt HB 132.
Nunber 1490

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH expl ained that HB 132 would require the attorney
general to participate as a party in lawsuits that affect the
managenent and jurisdiction of the natural resources of the
state. He noted that that |anguage appears [as an anmendnent to
AS 44.23.020(b)], on page 2, [lines 18-25], paragraph (10). He
explained that this proposed |egislation cane about because of
concern that currently the State of Alaska, through the
executive branch, and specifically the attorney general, is not
involving itself in cases affecting fisheries, jurisdiction, or
managenent of natural resources.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH offered a tinely exanple of the state's
inability to involve itself in the wlderness waters issues. He
noted that the state passed a resolution asking the [U S ]
Department of the Interior to appeal a case that affected
Al aska's fisheries. Soon after that resolution was adopted, the

attorney general did becone involved. Chair Wyhrauch said, "It
did take a legislative goosing to get the state involved in
that.” He said he thinks the State of Al aska has a fundanenta

interest in joining these types of lawsuits where the state's
managenent and jurisdiction of natural resources is put at risk.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH noted that the second part of the aforenentioned
| anguage would allow the attorney general to enter into
agreenents with other governnents or sovereigns if the agreenent
benefits [the managenent of a natural resource of the state].

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH revealed that he had been advised that the
Ofice of the Attorney GCeneral opposes [HB 132], and he said
he's had concerns voiced to him that [HB 132] would infringe
upon the prerogatives of the executive branch by the legislative
br anch. He pointed out that the statute already dictates what
the attorney general "is going to do.”" He read sone exanples.
He stated that what really drove this proposed |egislation
initially was the Katie Johns v. United States case.

Nunber 1648

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 24, 2004



LANCE  NELSON, Seni or  Assi st ant Attorney General, Nat ur al

Resources Section, Civil D vision (Anchorage), Department of
Law, told the commttee that he has held his position in the
departnent for about 19 vyears. He read his testinony as
fol |l ows:

House Bill No. 132 requires the attorney general to

participate as a party in a judicial proceeding that
affects the managenent and jurisdiction of the natural
resources of the state, and to ensure by that
participation that the managenent and jurisdiction of
the natural resources are not dimnished or ceded to
anot her government or sovereign. The bill ... also
anmends the rules of Civil Procedure and the Rules of
Appel | ate Procedure to require the court to notify the
attorney general when a case arises that nmay fal
wi thin that category.

We're concerned that it will harm Alaska’s interest to
take away the attorney general’s discretion to decide
whether to participate as a party in particular
litigation. We acknow edge that the bill is clearly
intended to protect the state’'s jurisdiction, but it
may hinder the attorney general’s ability to preserve
state authority over natural resources, because it is
very broad and it applies indiscrimnately. It takes
fromthe attorney general the ability to [ensure] that
inportant issues are presented to a court in the
manner nost advantageous to the state. Wiile the
attorney general nay well determne that intervention
in an existing case is the best way to protect state
interests, under HB 132, he cannot consider other
options. Wth no ability to nake strategic decisions,
the attorney general may be forced to litigate an
inportant issue under |ess than ideal circunstances,
Wi th negative precedential consequences.

For exanple, cases that affect the nmanagenent and
jurisdiction of natural resources frequently raise
state sovereignty issues. Strategically, the state is
ill advised to litigate these issues before the Court
of Appeals for the Ninth Crcuit, because, in Al aska' s
experience, this court seens to apply a presunption

agai nst state sovereignty. In a reactive node,
however, forced to intervene in a case brought by
others, the state may have no choi ce. In a proactive

node, the state can raise the issue itself by filing

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 24, 2004



suit in a court nore likely to give serious
consideration to Alaska's interests.

Nunber 1750

QO her strategic decisions are also inportant to the
state’s chance of success in litigation. Often cases
will turn on the wunderlying facts, and good I egal
strategy dictates that an inportant issue be based on
a factual situation that tends to highlight the
justice of the state’ s position. Facts that invoke
synpathy for the state’'s opponent, on the other hand,
will harm the state’s chance of success, even if the
state is correct on the |aw Under HB 132, the state
will be forced to litigate an issue regardless of
whet her the underlying facts support the w sdom of the
state’s position. And once the state litigates a
| egal issue, it generally wll be bound to the outcone
in future cases involving that issue.

Timng is also a consideration in litigating state
sovereignty issues. Sonme say that the United States
Suprenme Court is gradually increasing its recognition
of the inherent authority that states have under the
United States Constitution. It's a gradual increase

however; the Suprene Court does not conpletely reverse
years of case |law at once. The state has been caref ul
in all cases it brings, trying to gauge how far it can

push certain issues, and how best to raise them | f
the state tries to make huge gains in a single case,
it may |lose on everything. Yet the state may be

forced into that position if the attorney general
cannot choose the litigation in which he participates.

The bill also raises concerns about the best use of
Department of Law resources. The departnent often
declines to intervene in private litigation because,
although the state’'s interest in natural resources
jurisdiction is arguably involved, the financial
resources required to participate don't justify the
potential benefit to the public. For exanple, private
| andowners or |easeholders sonetinmes bring trespass
actions against gquides or fishernen for fishing on
their property. The fishernmen answer that they were
fishing below ordinary high water on a navigable
wat erway, and therefore they were on state |and, not
private land. The state may have an interest, because

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 24, 2004



the outcone may depend on whether the waterway is
navi gable, or on precisely where ordinary high water
ends and private upland begins. The state generally
declines to participate in this type of case, however

Wiile the private defendants want the state’s help in
preparing their defense, the cost to the state can be

enor nous. Determ ning navigability or the limts of
ordinary high water requires historians, hydrol ogists,
and other experts, and lots of attorney tine. The

cases rarely raise a purely legal issue; generally the
cases are the culmnation of long-running disputes
that turn on the facts, that are personal and raise
messy credibility issues. The overall payoff for
state participation can be insignificant. For
exanple, at best a case mght establish that at one
particular place, the public has a right to stand and
fish, provided they don’t wander above ordinary high
water onto the plaintiff’'s property. If the state
does not participate, it is not bound by the decision
and can litigate the issue in the future.

Nunmber 1869

Wen a case raises this type of nmanagenent or
jurisdictional issue, the attorney general needs the
discretion to decline participation. The attorney
general has to be able to decide how to use scarce
litigation resources to nmaximze the return to

Al aska’s citizens. And we do have scarce resources.
The Natural Resources Section that | serve in is about
one half the size it was in the early '90s because of
budget cuts over the years. W are not sufficiently
staffed to handle this level of mandatory Ilitigation
bur den. W believe we are doing a good job of

protecting the state’s interest in intervening 1in
| awsuits when appropriate. W have filed in a nunber
of tinber sale cases, the "Bristol Bay antitrust”
| awsuit, the "Tustunmena Lake" case, and the ["National
Pet rol eum Reserve- Al aska” (NPR-A)] litigation. W are
taking an active role in mny inportant natural
resources cases.

In short, the legislative branch may not agree wth
every litigation decision the attorney general nakes,
but it shouldn't try to take away his ability to make
t hem The attorney general needs the discretion to
determine the best Ilitigation strategy to advance

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 24, 2004



inportant state sovereignty issues and to decline to
participate in cases where the cost is not justified

by the potential benefit. HB 132 nmakes an all-
enconpassing decision that the state nust always
participate in Jlitigation in a broad category of
cases, but we do not see, at this point |ooking into
the future, that this wll turn out to be a good
deci si on.

Number 1939

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked M. Nel son how many cases per year involve
an issue relating to dimnishment of the state's ability to
manage its resource to another government or sovereign

MR. NELSON answered he doesn't know. He said, "W have sone
concerns about what that would show if we started actively
| ooking, and | think the bill would put on us, basically, an
affirmative duty to start doing that."

Nunmber 1980

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ revealed that when he worked in the
Department of Law, M. Nelson was one of the people who oversaw
sonme of his work. He stated, "We're really lucky we have people
i ke him working for us. | think it's one of the reasons why
the legislature's been able to cut the budget for the Departnent
of Law for so long, because we have a lot of really fine people
wor ki ng those sections.” He rem nded the committee that there
are half the nunber of people there that were there in the early
"90s and the issues are as great or even greater than they were
at that point.

Nunber 2014

MR. NELSON, in response to a question from Chair Wyhrauch,
clarified that by "proactive node" he neant that [HB 132] would
put an affirmative duty on "us" to go out and search out every
single case. Currently, nost of the inportant cases conme to the
fore and the option of intervention is discussed and eval uated.
However, he stated that there may be a |lot of other cases out
there that don't have the notoriety of the cases that have been
| ooked at, and those less noted cases nay have to be exam ned

too. He said, "Once the public is aware of this duty, |I'm sure
we're going to get all kinds of requests for private litigants
to cone in and get the state on their side."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 24, 2004



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH noted that the last section of the bill would
put permanent duty on parties to notify the state when the
managenent or jurisdiction of a natural resource of the state
may be affected. He suggested that would seem to take it away
from the state duty to "run around and find these cases" and
"put it on the party litigating that they must notify the
state.”

MR. NELSON responded that that may be true, but the end result
woul d be that there would be nore cases to review and it would
certainly take a lot of tine.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked M. Nelson if he could think of any case
in which it's not the interest of the State of Al aska to involve
itself when that case involves the dimnishnent or [cession] of
the state's nmanagenent and jurisdiction to another sovereign.

MR. NELSON answered yes. He explained as foll ows:

For exanpl e, if sonebody challenges a federal
subsi stence regul ation because they think the federa
government is overreaching in its authority, it nay

well be that, because of the facts of the case or
maybe soneone's being deprived of an opportunity
because of the facts of the case, "we" would prefer to
chall enge a selective challenge on regulations where
the facts of the situation [point] out the justice of
the state's case, as opposed to making the state | ook
like we're anti-subsistence. You' re probably aware of
the decision from the Ninth Crcuit that have listed
things we do as one nore exanple of the state's
denigration of the subsistence rights of Al askans.

And we would want to be able to nmount a challenge on
our own, and not be forced to becone involved where we
coul dn't really steer the proceedings and the
litigation and |imt the issues to the ones that we
t hought had sone chance of success, and paint the
state's legal positions in the best light. And that's
maybe not the best exanple, but there are a lot of
cases out there where people are arguing about the
federal governnent's ability to do things, where the
litigation could go on and on forever, because

even if we intervene, we would not be able to contro
the scope of the litigation at that. | think it would
be not to our advantage where |aw would be nade, and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 24, 2004



because we're a party, we'd be bound by it to be
involved in that kind of litigation.

Nunber 2164

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked if the Departnent of Law would be opposed
to the legislature's requesting through a resolution, for
exanple, that the Ofice of the Attorney General becone involved
in a case it judges as inportant.

MR. NELSON replied that he cannot speak for the departnent on
that; however, he expressed his belief that, as has happened in
the past, he doesn't think that the attorney general would
object to the legislature expressing its policy views in that
manner .

Number 2219

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned attention to Section 3 of the
bill. He asked M. Nelson if he believes that there may be sone
nmerit in requiring the notification of the Departnent of Law in
certain kinds of natural resource cases or any other Kkinds of
cases. He explained the reason for his question is because he
thinks that the requirenment in Rule 24 that the attorney general
be notified when the constitutionality of a law is called into

question is an inportant one. He suggested that there may be
sone types of natural resource cases that the attorney general
ought to be notified about. He said he wonders whether Rule

24(c) and the equivalent appellate rule ought to be expanded in
sonme way to require the notification of the state in "certain

types of other cases.” He pointed to the |anguage on page [3],
beginning on lines 3 and 12, regarding the constitutionality of
state statute being drawn into question. He noted that the

phrase "affecting the public interest"” appears in the first
reference beginning on line 3, but not in the second reference
having to do with the equival ent appellate rule. He questi oned
whet her that appellate rule should be anended to include the
sanme phrase.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG questioned "whether that ought to be
expanded to include regulations affecting the public interest.”
He also noted, "If it's a regulation, it's not just a question
of the constitutionality, but the legality of a regulation
affecting the public interest.”

Nunber 2345

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 24, 2004



DAVID W MARQUEZ, Chief Assistant Attorney General, Legislation
& Reqgul ations Section, Ofice of the Attorney GCeneral,
Department of Law, echoed M. Nelson's previous remark that it
could take quite a bit of effort to scan all the court records -
which may be in several jurisdictions - to find out what cases
m ght be af fecting nat ur al resour ces, r egar di ng
constitutionality and dimnishnent of sovereignty, for exanple.
He said he thinks there nay be nerit in receiving notices of
cases that mght "affect us." He added that he is sure that the
| egi slature mght also like to know about "those kind of cases
that m ght be out there.”

TAPE 04-45, SIDE B
Number 2378

MR. MARQUEZ reveal ed that he has only been with the departnent a
little over a year and he doesn't know what resources would be
avai |l abl e to "scan" those notices.

Number 2355
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG i ndicated that there is an equivalent

federal provision that requires the U S. attorney general to be
notified when the constitutionality of a federal statute is

called into question. He stated that he doesn't know if there
is an equivalent provision in the federal rules of appellate
procedure. He observed there is nothing in Rule 24(c) that

requires, in a state preceding, that the U S. attorney general
must be notified if the constitutionality of a federal statute
is called into question, because the federal rules don't apply
in state court. He said he thinks that if the constitutionality
of a federal statute is called into question, a U S. attorney
general should be notified, because one issue that would
i mredi ately becone of interest to the U S attorney general's
of fice would be whether that case ought to be renpbved from state

court to federal court. He stated, "M. Chair, | have sone of
the sane problens that the attorneys have already expressed on
this bill, and | see this as an inportant potential vehicle for
providing sonme really good anmendnments to ... Cvil Rule 24(c)
and possibly Appellate Rule 514, and |I'm wondering if the chair
would be willing to have this bill |ooked at from that point of
Vi ew. "

Nunber 2290

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH r esponded that he has a nunber of anendnents and
the bill will be brought back before the conmttee.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 24, 2004



Number 2274

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM of fered his sense that part of the solution
being focused on for developnent is based upon the fact that
[ Al aska] doesn't have an elected attorney general. He clarified
that by that he neans that there is no direct relationship
between who the attorney general is and what is in the best
interest of the people of Alaska, necessarily. He cited
[@acier Bay National Park and Preserve] as an exanple of when
the federal governnent cones in and takes a piece of Al aska and
no one fights them He said there have been nmany cases where
the state has gotten involved in the best interest of the people

of Al aska. He indicated that he somewhat thinks it is
appropriate to exercise sone legislative control over the
attorney general's office in "this way." He stated that "all of

us here" are concerned wth the state's rights for its
sovereignty and want to demand that the attorney general take
the appropriate action. He indicated that [HB 132] is a good
starting point.

Number 2208

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH renmarked that it seenms like a bill calling for
an elected attorney general is introduced al nbost every session

He suggested that an elected attorney general mght consider
whet her pursuing an issue was in his/her best politica

interest. He indicated that the |legislature would still have to
i npose on [the attorney general] an obligation to do what's best
for the [state], whether that attorney general was elected or
not .

Number 2175

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG questioned whether, constitutionally,
the legislature can order the attorney general to participate in
a case or to take a certain position. He said he is aware of at
| east two cases that say that "the judiciary" cannot do so. He
gave sone exanples of <cases that deal wth violations of
separation of powers. He said is not aware of any case
determ ning whether the attorney general can be ordered by the
| egislature to participate or prosecute any case or a given type
of case. He told M. Mrquez that he would like to see sone
| egal research on that.

Nunber 2070

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 24, 2004



MR. NELSON clarified that "our"™ objections are based on Sections
1 and 2, rather than Sections 3 and 4. More specifically, he
said he doesn't think "we" have any serious problenms with the
notice requirenents that are in Sections 3 and 4. He conti nued
as follows:

| think the bill does raise serious separation of
powers issues, because the Al aska [State] Constitution
does give the governor the authority right now to
basically steer the legal participation by the state

and the courts. And the bill raised the question of,
"Does this overstep policy-nmaking authority of the
| egislature to ... set policy for the state and go
beyond that and basically direct an executive function
in a nore detailed way ... that would be inconsistent
with the separation of powers doctrine?” C e
haven't chosen to ... highlight those issue as the
main concern for the bill at this point in tinme, but

we do recogni ze those as serious issues.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said he thinks he pointed that out when he
i ntroduced the bill

Nunber 2000
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, regarding Sections 3 and 4, said it seens

li ke, currently, under both those rules, notice is given by the
court to the attorney general of anything challenging the

constitutionality. Representative Seaton turned attention to
the added |anguage on [page 3, lines 4-5], which read as
fol | ows:

, or (2) the nmanagenent or jurisdiction of the natural
resources of the state nmay be affected,

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said it seens |like every case that's taken
by a fisherman is talking about the nanagenent of a fisheries
resource. He said he wants to get a handle on whether the
requirenent on lines 4 and 5 would nean that "you would have to
get notification of alnbst every fisheries case that goes
forward.” He interjected that he is not as famliar with tinber
cases, but he stated his concern that "this is broadening the

noted provisions so nmuch that it mght be kind of plowed
when the constitutionality notifications are com ng."

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH responded that it seens that if there is sone
other entity rather than the State of Al aska managi ng or having

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 24, 2004



jurisdiction over the state's fisheries, the state better know
about that case. He asked M. Nelson to respond.

MR. NELSON reiterated that [the departnent] doesn't really have
a concern with Sections 3 and 4. He said:

| think that would place a burden on the court system
and parties, as opposed to the state. | think that

there's a potential, | guess; any tine state |aw
or a state regulation is challenged or a narrow
interpretation of that is wurged, then that m ght
inplicate those sections and require sonme kind [of]
notice. And so, there probably would be a pretty big
grey area where the courts would probably err on the
side of ... wanting to conply with the requirenments of
the rules and the parties too, and it nay be broader
than you' d wish to see.

Number 1900
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that the aforenentioned lines 4 and

5 don't just relate to those cases in which there's another
sovereign or anybody asserting jurisdiction; it says that the

managenment of natural resources may be affected. He said it
seens like [in] every case there is a challenge of regulation
"or sonething there." He asked [M. Nelson] if he agreed wth

his interpretation of the |anguage on lines 4 and 5.
Nunber 1872

MR. NELSON responded that it is broad | anguage and nay have the
potential to result in notices of a |ot nore cases than what is
really intended by the bill

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said it seenms to himthat if that were an issue
then it could be resolved by inserting the word "state" in
bet ween "t he" and "managenent".

Number 1844

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded that he doesn't think that
woul d [solve the issue], because "this is very, very broad," and
it will really require sonme careful drafting. He said he hopes
the departnent will consider the comments that have been uttered
today and "figure on a policy basis what we ought to do wth
those two rules.” He stated that he also sees sone inpact on

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 24, 2004



two other groups of people who are not represented at the
hearing: all the nenbers of the bar, and the court system

Number 1809
CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH announced that [HB 132 was heard and hel d].

HB 496- YOUTH VOTE AVMBASSADOR PROG ELECTI ON BDS

Nunber 1801

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the |ast order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 496, "An Act creating the Youth Vote Anbassador
Program and relating to that program authorizing the nmenbers of
the program to be appointed to serve on election boards;
relating to qualifications for appointnent to election boards;
and providing for an effective date.”

Number 1790

KELLY HUBER, Staff to Representative Nancy Dahlstrom Al aska
State Legislature, presented HB 496 on behalf of Representative
Dahl strom sponsor. She said that, in an effort to bring young
people into the election process, HB 496 would allow high schoo

students 16 years and older to participate at the polls as part

of the election boards. The youth wll be trained by the
el ection supervisor and be assigned to certain election
precincts as deened necessary by the supervisor. Ms. Huber
noted that 74 percent of the United States already does this
type of program She said it's a way to get young voters
interested - hopefully for life - in the process.

IVB. HUBER noted that the bill would also amend the
qualifications for appointment to the precinct election board,
by renmoving the requirenment that a person nust live in the
precinct [in which he/she would be working]. She explained this

anendnent was added because, nmany tines, there are a |lot of
interested youth from one precinct, while not so many in
another, and this would give the Dvision of Elections the
ability to nove people as long as they are qualified in the
state.

Nunber 1731
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG surm sed that the reason for an

i medi ate effective date has to do wth the upcom ng August
el ection. He asked if that is Ms. Huber's thinking.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 24, 2004



M5. HUBER replied it is. She added that the youth need to be
trained. The effective date nmakes it possible to |et youth know
about the opportunity to participate and for them to go through
a training process and be avail able for the upcom ng el ections.

Nunber 1702

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that, as a general policy basis,
he has never favored |egislative findings. He opined that they
usually don't add nuch to the law. He asked if there is a need
for legislative findings in the bill.

M5. HUBER responded no. She indicated that the D vision of
El ections [included findings] as a way of explanati on.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded, "W could do that in those
bills."

M5. HUBER concurred.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks [HB 496] is a good bill
Nunber 1646

M5. HUBER, in response to a question from Chair Wyhrauch,
clarified that, typically, a sixteen-year-old would be either a
sophonore or junior in high school.

Number 1630

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Ms. Huber to explain the reason for
"taking out the precinct and going back to not involving the
people in the precinct as the election ... personnel.”

M5. HUBER indicated that the bill would not do that. She
clarified that the bill would effect a change so that a person
woul d not have to live in the precinct in which he/she wrks as
an election poll worker. She reiterated that this would give
the Division of Elections the ability to redirect sone qualified
personnel from one precinct with many workers, to one with few.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if part of the reason to have

workers fromtheir own precinct was so that they are better able
to identify the voters as they sign in to vote.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- March 24, 2004



M5. HUBER responded that she is sure that was one of the

original [reasons to do that]; however, [the Division of
El ections] is losing people in sone areas and needs this tool in
order to have qualified workers in all the precincts. [In

regard to the question of better identification], she noted that
sonme form of identification is required. She said she doesn't
think that [the D vision of Elections] would [transfer people]
unless it is necessary to do so. She indicated one reason for
the loss of [election workers] in sonme areas 1s due to
attrition.

Nunber 1531

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed out that the proposed | anguage
could result in everyone in Juneau being taken out to run
el ections in Ketchikan, for exanple, because the change is to
renove the precinct requirenent, |eaving just the requirenent
that [the election worker be qualified to work in] the state.

M5. HUBER responded that although that is how the bill reads
she does not believe that the Division of Elections intends to
do that. She said she thinks the division just needs a little

bit nore latitude to ensure that there are qualified pol
workers in all precinct areas. She noted that Leonard Jones is
available from the Division of Elections to answer questions.
She indicated that HB 496 is intended as a managenent tool.

Number 1469
REPRESENTATIVE COGHI LL said his thinking is Ilike that of

Representative Seaton's. He stated that one of the goals of the
el ection policy is "to try to keep it as close to the people as

possible.”™ He nentioned "broadening it out to the state.” He
said, "I think there's already sone practice going on in this
arena, and we mght ask the Division of Elections ... if they've
actually stepped over this line." He opined, "At the very
|l east, | think we should stay within a district, nmainly because
of citizen re-participation in their own district." He noted
that Representative Carl Mrgan's district is "the horseshoe
district that takes in the bulk of the land of Al aska." He
suggested that district mght run into sonme problens. He

concluded that he would "err towards the side of keeping it [as]
close to the precinct as possible.”

Nunber 1413

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 24, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned to a handout [entitled "New

M Il ennium Best Practices Survey," included in the commttee
packet], which he said shows how other states handle "the youth
vot e anbassador kind of a concept."” Referring to the title of
the bill, he said he is not sure that the term "youth vote

anbassador programt is the nobst accurate description. He asked
if that is a termthat is used in other states.

Nunber 1374

LEONARD  JONES, El ections  Speci al Assi st ant, Division of
El ecti ons, Ofice of the Lieutenant Gover nor, answeri ng
guestions on behalf of the division, told Representative
Gruenberg that there are a variety of terns used in various
states to nane simlar prograns. He noted sone other nanes that
have been considered by the division. The bottom line is to
i nvol ve the young people of the state of Alaska in the process
of voting and in learning the nmechanics of the operation within
the el ection process.

Number 1295

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG brought attention to page 2, line 6 of
the bill, which requires the youth to be a student age 16 or
older. He asked if 16 is the |lowest common age chosen by other
st at es.

MR. JONES said 16 is the npost commpn age.

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG noted that in sone states, there are
limts as to what the youth can do. He asked M. Jones what he
t hi nks the young people would do and how did the division arrive
at its conclusion, rather than perhaps setting a nore
restrictive role.

Number 1235

MR. JONES said the election board, when set up in the precincts,
will be made up of "two possible youth anmbassadors.”™ They wll
be working with other adults and under the supervision of an
el ection supervisor who will be "noving between these areas.”
He indicated that [the youth] could be serving as runners and
hel ping with the setup, and they may - under supervision of
another qualified adult - get to check off nanes, based on the

identification provided by the voter.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- March 24, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if there is |anguage in the bil
that clarifies that.

MR. JONES turned to the new |anguage on [page 2, beginning on
line 29], which read as foll ows:

An el ection supervisor nay also appoint not nore than
two nenbers of the youth vote anbassador program
established in AS 15.10.108 to serve on a precinct
el ection board.

Nunber 1166

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL suggested that to clarify that point,
perhaps it could be stated what the "conbination of people”
woul d be on a precinct board. He asked if [the board] would
always be limted to a nunber, or is "nmaximzed by nunber."” He
asked what the rest of the commttee's makeup would be if two
menbers of the commttee were youth workers.

Nunber 1154

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG pointed to [page 2], lines 17-18, which
read as foll ows:

AS. 15. 10.120. A program nenber who is appointed to
serve on an election board wunder this subsection
serves under the supervision of the chairperson for
t hat board.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG offered an exanple that there nay be
three people, but the adult supervisor takes a bathroom break,
| eaving the two youths al one. He asked what woul d prevent that
inthe bill.

Number 1115

M5. HUBER said she thinks that part of the job of the supervisor
at the polling place is to nake sure that doesn't happen. She
said the supervisors are trained through the Division of
El ecti ons. She surmsed that there's a trust that the division
woul d not | eave two youth "manning” a polling place.

Number 1098

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL concurred with M. Huber. He said, "But
it says, '"At least three', so we know that the nakeup is going

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 24, 2004



to be at least five at this point." He expl ained that he just
wants to know whether the general makeup would be six or eight,
for exanple, and would the workers [give each ot her breaks].

Nunmber 1080

MR, JONES indicated that it would depend. For exanple, he said
that there would be a smaller nunmber of people working in rura
ar eas. He offered to get information to the conmmttee that
woul d show what the division considers when it sets up the
"precinct election booklets."

Number 1064

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH noted that, currently, the |anguage of the bil
makes conpensation of the youth mandatory. He asked if it had
to be that way. He surmsed that would create a fiscal inpact.
He noted that [AS] 15.15.380 directs the director to pay each
el ection board nenber

Number 1040
MS. HUBER turned to [subsection (c), on page 2], which read:

(c) An election supervisor my appoint a nenber
of the youth vote anbassador program to serve on a
precinct election board appointed under AS 15.19.120.
A program nmenber who is appointed to serve on an
el ection board under this subsection serves under the
supervi sion of the chairperson for that board.

M5. HUBER al so noted [subsection (e), on page 2], which read as
fol | ows:

(e) A nmenber of the program nmay provide unpaid
vol unteer services related to education and outreach
on state elections as directed by, and under the
supervision of, the director of elections.
CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked, "So is it to be volunteer or paid?"
MS. HUBER r esponded, "Good question.”
CHAIR WEYHRAUCH told M. Huber that the commttee likes the

bill, but has questions regarding it that my result in
amendnent s.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 24, 2004



Number 0990

REPRESENTATIVE COGHI LL noted that there is sone regulatory
authority already regarding selecting people out of precincts,

which he said looks like "it goes contrary to statute that's
already in existence." He suggested it would be good to find
out if that's a practice that has already sonehow been witten
into sone regulatory policy. He added, "I'd like to call that

in, if that's the case."
Number 0953

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if, by law, there is a mninum
nunber of people on an el ection board.

Number 0948

MR JONES said he wuld have to review the regulations
specifically in order to answer that question.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noted that Section 3 designates "at | east
three qualified voters".

Number 0931

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned to page 2, lines [26-31], which
read as foll ows:

*Sec. 3. AS 15.10.120(a) is anended to read:

(a) An election supervisor shall appoint in each
precinct within the election supervisor's district an
el ection board conposed of at least three qualified
voters registered to vote in this state [THAT
PRECI NCT] . An el ection supervisor may also appoint
not nore than two nenbers of the youth vote anbassador
program established in AS 15.10.108 to serve on a
preci nct el ection board.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he interprets that |anguage to
nmean that two of the three people could be youths.

Nunmber 0890

M5. HUBER noted that the | anguage within those |ines states that
[the el ection supervisor] "nay also appoint”, and she enphasi zed
the word "also". She indicated her understanding of the
| anguage is that [the two nenbers of the youth vote anbassador

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 24, 2004



program would be] in addition to the three [workers over the age
of 18]. She suggested that that |anguage could be clarified in
a commttee substitute.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG i ndi cated that the |anguage should be
clarified to read, "in addition to the other three." He stated
hi s understandi ng that one of the purposes of the election board
people is to determne the qualifications of an individual
voter, if there is a challenge "right there." He opined it
woul d not be good public policy to allow youths to be able to
make up a npjority of the board and maybe deterni ne whet her sone
adult gets to vote or not.

M5. HUBER said she thinks the sponsor will [agree to] nost of
t he changes that the conm ttee has di scussed.

Nunber 0842

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that HB 496 was heard and hel d.

ADJ OQURNMENT

Nunber 0813

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 9:26
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- March 24, 2004



